

District 11NR Board & Staff Meeting Minutes Wednesday 20 October, 2021 1900 PDT Webinar

Call to Order: 1900 hours by DCO Dean McFarren

Roll Call: By Georgie Scheuerman. Present were: CDR Paige Keenan, BOSN2 Dustin Finkelson; COMO Dean McFarren, DCO; Curtis Han, DCOS; COMO Mary Kirkwood, IPDCO, DNACO PACAREA; Alan Stanton, DCAPT; Nancy Marion, DCAPT; Bruce Martin, DCAPT; COMO Dale Fajardo, DCDR; Russ Kaiser, DCDR; Michael Brown, DCDR; Lew Derfuss, DCDR; Chuck Cobery, DCDR; Tony Zocchi, DCDR; Phil Mammano, DCDR; Dock Pierce, DCDR; Bryce Leinan, DCDR; Jim Losi, P-PCA

A quorum was present to conduct business.

Guests: Reported in Addendum A.

Attendance is reported in Addendum A.

Board and Staff attended the meeting via GoToMeeting. Other D11NR Members attended via YouTube.

Approval of Meeting Minutes:

• September 2021: Russ Kaiser made motion to approve. Bryce Leinan seconded. Minutes approved.

District Board & Staff Reports:

DCDR 1 COMO Dale Fajardo – Rpt on File: Dale reported Div 1 had a good OPEX on 3 OCT at YBI. The division also had a good turnout for Fleet Week. For 2022 Terry Blanchard was elected VCDR and COMO Dale Fajardo was elected DCDR.

DCDR 3 Russ Kaiser – Rpt on File: Russ reported on Bow Wow Days Event in Orangevale. There were 2000 attendees. This event emphasizes pet safety around the water. The Div elections resulted in Don Anderson as DCDR and John McPherson as VCDR for 2022. Currently half of the flotilla elections are completed.

DCDR 4 Michael Brown – Rpt on File: Michael reported the Division elections are complete. Eddie Lam will be DCDR with Kristen Verveniotis as VCDR for 2022. Michele Gibson [Culinary Assistant (CA)] received a Letter of Appreciation from the Pacific Strike Team for CA work.

DCDR 5 Lew Derfuss – Rpt on File: Lew reported DIV 5 had a Mini-OPTREX and then an OPTREX at Bodega Bay. There were 8 requals. Members also participated at Fleet Week. During a patrol members helped a boat at Emeryville. Division elections resulted in Randy McCormick as DCDR with Bob Schabert as VCDR for 2022. Flotilla elections are underway.

DCDR 6 Chuck Cobery – Rpt on File: Chuck reported Div 6 OPTREX was conducted on 10 & 11 SEPT. It went well. He thanked Curtis Han and BOSN2 Dustin Finkelson who served as QEs. 13 members qualed or requaled. Chuck noted COMO Wally Smith will serve as DCDR with Dave Frisbey as VCDR for 2022.

DCDR 7 Tony Zocchi – Rpt on File: Tony reported Div 7 had a 2nd OPTREX. It was a mini-OPTREX. Division members supported a marine event featuring a row boat race with 40 vessels. Division elections resulted in Paul Custance as VCDR and Tony Zocchi as DCDR for 2022. Tony noted the boating season for Div 7 has come to an end.

DCDR 8 Phil Mammano – Rpt on File: Phil reported the Div Meeting was conducted with DCAPT Nancy Marion present for elections. Rich Stanton will be VCDR and John Felton will be DCDR for 2022. Division members are continuing to take care of the fuel farm. There have also been some helicopter OPS. Surface OPS season is coming to an end. Currently setting up for Div 8 COW which will be conducted virtually on Dec 8th.

DCDR 10 Dock Pierce – Rpt on File: Dock reported the Div 10 OPTREX went well. Elections are underway. Div elections went well with Bill Boersma as DCDR and Thomas Witt as VCDR for 2022. Currently conducting flotilla elections. Dec 11 is the Div 10 COW. Working on staff for both the division and flotillas.

DCDR 11 Bryce Leinan – Rpt on File: Bryce reported the Reno flotilla had elections. Trent Bachman was elected FC for 11-03. Boating season is coming to an end. Member(s) participated in Fleet Week. **DCDR 12** Greg Olsen – Rpt on File: Greg was excused. Georgie Scheuerman (Div 12 VCDR) reported the Div 12 OPTREX was cancelled due to lack of orders. A mini-OPTREX is planned for January. Div 12 COW is scheduled for 11DEC. It will be virtual. Division and flotilla elections will be conducted over the next few weeks.

PPCA: Jim Losi – Rpt on File: Jim Losi reported 3 members crossed the bar in the last month. We had a moment of silence in their honor. On Nov 6th the AUX Memorial Ceremony is scheduled to be recorded. Planning is underway for an in-person January PCA Fair. PCA elections will be conducted on 28 OCT.

IPDCO: Mary Kirkwood: COMO Kirkwood reported she had nothing for IPDCO. National: 23 & 24 OCT are National Meetings. OPCOM on 23OCT at 1000 PDT is where each Directorate will report. Will be on YouTube. National Board Meeting will be on 24OCT at 1000 PDT, with some awards being presented. Mary noted many PQS are being revised.

DIRAUX: CDR Paige Keenan: CDR Keenan reported that not much is going on related to COVID. We're still in Phase III. COVID numbers are going down. At CGI we now don't need masks inside if fully vaccinated. CDR Keenan encourage members to continue going out and doing missions. Blackout: Diraux can only authorize missions for critical operations. Still in this situation until at least 15NOV. No reimbursements will be made until 15NOV. But members can get help with costs if needed. They should make a request through our AUX COLM

OTO: BOSN2 Dustin Finkelson: OTO Finkelson reported that OPTREX went well this year. He also noted that he's drafting an OTO Chronicle.

<u>Curtis Han: DSO Reports:</u> Curtis noted that EXCOM thanks all staff for their work during this past year.

DCAPT Prevention Alan Stanton DCAPT- Alan

<u>Wil Sumner DSO-MS</u> – Rpt on File. Wil reported several members received qualifications for various MS quals. There's also been a lot of Sea Partner activity doing Beach Cleanup in September.

<u>Jane Smith DSO-PA</u> - Rpt on File: Jane thanked SOs for their reports. On 1 OCT a message came down reminding us about photos taken inside. We need masks with 6 feet separations. At the JAN PCA there will be a class for PA. 2 PA C-Schools will be offered in 2022. They're not open yet for registration. One

will be in San Diego and one on Sept 16-18 at CGI. If members want to attend, let Jane know so she can assist.

<u>Mike Thompson DSO-PV</u> - Rpt on File: Mike reported our numbers are going well but he believes not all PVs are being reported. Asked DCDRs to encourage members to report PVs.

<u>Michael Hay DSO-NS</u> - Rpt on File: Michael reported all bridges complete. PATONs are mostly complete but some are still being worked on.

<u>Sean Harvey DSO-PE</u> – Rpt on File: Sean reported on efforts getting instructors out of REWK. He thanked DIRAUX for helping to get people out of REWK. He's planning to put on a class for instructors either virtually or at the PCA Fair. He congratulated the newly elected DCDRs and asked that they introduce their SO-PEs to him.

Mike Lauro DSO-VE - Rpt on File: Mike was not present.

DCAPT Response Nancy Marion DCAPT -

<u>Larry Olson DSO-AV</u> – Rpt on File: Larry reported AV will have a swim test on 23OCT at CGI. This is primarily for air squadron members but available to boat crew as well. Larry also noted that Air Station San Francisco held an AUX Appreciation Day for Surface and Air.

<u>COMO Wally Smith DSO-OP</u> - Rpt on File: Wally extended a Bravo Zulu to all boats that were out for Fleet Week. He also extended congratulations to the members who've done Kite Surfing patrols. This work was appreciated. 73 boat crew were qualed or requaled as of the end of Sept. 9 members who are in REWK and due this year may be deciding to not continue. He noted we should make sure PPE is collected from these individuals. At the PCA Fair in Jan OP will have some boat crew training.

<u>Larry Stanton DSO-CM</u> - Rpt on File: Larry thanked those who provided communications for Fleet Week. He noted CM is working to get a link for comms in the South Bay. There will be an AUXOP COMMS class at the PCA Fair.

<u>Vinicio Mata DSO-EM</u> – Rpt on File: Vinicio reported continued monitoring of the fires. Only a few members are being monitored now.

<u>John-Michael Zimmerle DSO-AS</u> –Rpt on File: John-Michael thanked OTO Finkelson for getting orders and Linda Haynes for CA help needed for the 23OCT Sea Scouts event at YBI. Still looking for additional AUX help. Event will start at 0700 on Saturday doing set up. 0800 starts activities which continue until 1700. They will have food and they have authorization for up to 150 scouts.

DCAPT Support & Planning Bruce Martin DCAPT –

<u>BK Barr DSO-CS</u> – Rpt on File: BK was excused. Bruce noted they're continuing archiving and posting reports.

<u>Linda Haynes DSO-CA</u> – Rpt on File: Linda reported on the upcoming 23OCT event for the Sea Scouts where CA will provide food.

<u>Robert Aston DSO-IS</u> - Rpt on File: Robert reminded members about AUX Core Training (CT). He noted we're currently down 7 FSO-IS in our district.

<u>Ann Zocchi DSO-MT</u> – Rpt on File: Ann reported there are links in her report for BQ, CT, and C-schools. Currently working on Elected Officers Training (EOT). She asked that we report the elected officers to her. 9DEC is the first session. EOT will finish at the PCA Fair in January. Will be reaching out to instructors for the EOT.

<u>Steven Hilt DSO-DV</u> – Rpt on File: Steven was excused.

<u>Jim Losi DSO-HR</u> – Rpt not on File: Jim reported on 7035s. He noted it's important to submit 7035s. These are processed rapidly at DIRAUX. For non-payment of dues members are removed on 15DEC. He noted many of these members never hear from their FC about this.

<u>Jerry Edelen DSO-MA</u> - Rpt on File: Jerry reported the rolling stock are on hold doing tire inspections and other inspections to maintain safety. He noted that Fran Fischer noticed some unusual actions in the district finance account. The account was closed and new one opened. He thanked Fran for this. <u>Greg Schaefer DSO-PB</u> – Rpt on File: Greg was excused. Always looking for articles.

Curtis Han - DCOS

<u>Fran Fisher DSO-FN</u> – Rpt on File: Fran asked if there were any questions. There were none. That completed her report.

<u>Ricardo Moreno INT REL</u> – Ricardo reported that the National Directorate is doing regular courses. An interpreter helped with the investigation of the pipeline spill in Southern California. Got good reviews on this help.

<u>Georgie Scheuerman DSO-SR</u> – Minutes in: Georgie noted she had nothing to add.

ASC- SF: <u>Sue Fry</u>: Rpt on File: Sue reported things were extremely busy with Fleet Week. Today at the Sector All Hands Meeting some awards were presented to Coast Guard and some Auxiliary members. She noted that if your division is planning an event with Sector, it's good to get info to Sector Command. **ASC- Humboldt:** <u>Bill Hale</u>: Rpt on File: Bill reported that we continue to support Humboldt. Light House support and Fuel Farm support continues. Members also did some Helo OPS.

COMO McFarren thanked all the DSOs for their work this past year.

DCO McFarren: DSO Reports:

<u>Joanna Leighton-Nevesny DSO-L</u>P: Joanna was not present. <u>Neal Nevesny - Civil Rights</u> – Neal was not present.

Leadership Reports:

DCOS – Curtis Han:

i. D11 Request for Forces Update

- 1. Total of 61 requests up-to-date. One request for assistance for the IronMan event on October 24th in the Delta requested Aux Facilities. Tommy Holtzman will be coordinating facilities and crew members for the event
- 2. Total of 38 requests closed; 1 in progress; 22 remain open.
- 3. Please encourage your members to update their skills bank information and make sure they are current in Core Training and Risk Management to be considered if opportunities pop up.

ii. Risk Management Initial Training and Refresher Training Reports

1. Initial RM Training – 8 members (Staff Officers) are still non-compliant.

113-03-01	LEE TOM H	FSO-OP
113-03-03	KARISH KATHI A	FSO-MT
113-04-09	FLOOD PATRICIA S	SO-MS
113-05-01	KELSEY-MOLLWITZ DEANNA	FSO-PA
113-05-05	FITZGERALD JAMES J	FSO-MS
113-05-05	SIMMONS ERIC S	ADSO-CM
113-12-01	KAM DAVID W	FSO-MS
113-12-91	OUIMETTE RONALD E	FSO-MS

2. RM Refresher Training –79.8% of those who need the refresher training have completed since the last month. Ranked third of five in PACAREA. 34 members have expired (updated Oct 1)

iii. Core Training:

- 1. As of October 13, 2021, we are currently sitting at 64% compliance for core training and below the 68% National average for the Auxiliary. We also ranked fourth of five in PACAREA.
 - a. 406 of our 1143 members are not current.

iv. AP/IQ Status:

- 1. Currently we sit at 78 members (6.6%) in AP. The Aux Average is 7.0% and we're #2 of 5 Districts in PACAREA
- 2. We currently have 97 members (8.3%) in IQ status. The Aux Average is 4.2% and we're ranked 4th out of 5 Districts in PACAREA.
- 3. AUXOP we currently have 185 of 1143 members (16.2%) with AX/AX2 designation. National average is 15.1%, ranked 2nd of 5 in PACAREA.

v. National Safety Update:

1. National Safety Update was provided by COMO Robert Schaefer on Thursday, October 14, 2021, attended by Assistant District Safety Officer, Bill Pope. I attended the second session (repeated training) on Saturday, October 16, 2021. The presentation was the same presentation provided at the ASOC session in August. No new training materials or modules were provided. I have requested COMO Schaefer to provide me with the PowerPoint presentation, that D11N could use to update our members in the near future.

DCO – Dean McFarren:

i. We continue to march towards normality:

- a. As with last month, there currently is NO plan to revert back to a Phase II or other restricted duty but COMO McFarren asked us to remind our members that we all need to follow Reconstitution Plan safety guidance and not let our guard down. Be your shipmate's keeper and help keep our District safe.
- b. He's heard from a couple members asking if in-person meetings are now prohibited since we had to cancel the in-person PCA Fair.
 - i. This is untrue. In person meetings are still authorized for internal activities such as meetings and training AND external activities such as Public Education classes.
 - ii. There is a caveat though. Meetings must be 50 or less people to be considered by DIRAUX for approval.
 - 1. Also, a mass gathering form must be completed for any new meetings.
 - 2. For repeat meetings, e.g. flotilla meetings, the organizer should review the approved MGF, assess if there are any significant changes, and resubmit ONLY if there are significant changes to the risk or mitigation plans.
- c. We know that many Divisions and Flotilla's are seeing a downturn in meeting attendance as we continue to learn how to manage COVID. He noted that each and every member is important and the work we do is equally important. We can do just about every task we did before COVID... It's important to reinforce that and let our members know that they can return to duty if they so choose.
 - i. Let's be the voice of encouragement and work with our members to get them energized and engaged.

ii. Sector San Francisco Meeting

- a. DCOS and COMO McFarren met with Sector Commander CAPT Lam and Deputy CAPT Baldueza on 24SEP to talk about current and future support opportunities we may be able to fill.
- b. Discussed the RFF at length and both were very happy at the roles we are filling.
- c. Additionally, we talked about Fleet Week support, the Sea Scouts Safety at Sea event, and SSF participation in upcoming Division COW's.

- d. Long term, CAPT Lam brought up an intriguing concept of "S-TRAIN". A sector sponsored training session that would include active duty, reservists, and aux personnel. We're going to be looking into this more for 2022.
- e. Additionally, we discussed their participation in DTRAIN and to include the AUXLO's and representatives from other stations in the sector.
- **f.** Lastly, we left them with a copy of our District Operations Plan for review and inclusion in their strategic plan when applicable.

iii. D11 Commander Quarterly Meeting

- a. CDR Keenan and COMO McFarren had their quarterly call with Admiral Penoyer this afternoon and discussed Request for Forces status.
 - i. We've placed four members in billets at Air Station Sacramento and Sector San Francisco in the past quarter.
 - ii. We still have quite a few opportunities available for our members.
 - iii. One item that has repeatedly come up

iv. Membership Status:

- a. Currently at 1138 as of last report on 10/2. Down from 1144 last month at this time (+6 YTD).
- b. We have recruited 101 new members in 2021 through 10/2 so we're still above our goal trend of 10% for the year. (Currently at 11% YTD)
- c. Flotilla 01-09 (Coyote Point) has taken over as our leading producer with 15 new members recruited and Division 01 is still our leading Division with 22 new members in 2021.
 - i. We need to bottle what 1-9 is doing and share it with others.
 - ii. They have recruited more members by themselves than any other Division!

As of 02OCT21

2019	2020	2021 Membership Inflows and Outflows					
Year End	Year End		Retired	Members			2021
# of	# of		or	Crost		NET*	B /(W)
Members	Members	New	Left	***The Bar	**TXFR	MEMBERS	2020

OLD BUSINESS: COMO McFarren notes the following:

a. September PCA Fair 18SEPT Recap

- 1) COMO McFarren thanked everyone that attended the virtual PCA fair on 18SEP. We had a very good turnout for a Saturday morning in front of the computer.
- 2) Coordinators Jim Losi, Michelle Thompson, AV guru Bryce Leinan, and the rest of the team did a wonderful job pivoting from an in-person event to a virtual one.
- 3) Our speakers, CAPT Lam, SSF Commander, NACO Alex Malewski, and COMO Kirkwood were exceptional, and our AUC's from Station Rio Vista and Station Golden Gate, Steve Harrison and Gerry Easton, really gave inspirational talks about their experiences with the active duty.
- 4) We are planning on having our January 2022 PCA fair in person. Hopefully, by that time, COVID guidance will have changed and we can meet in large groups once again.

b. Division & Flotilla elections

- At the time of this meeting, nine of our ten Divisions have held their Division elections. COMO McFarren congratulated the following members who have chosen to step up and be Division leaders for 2022.
 - a. Division 01 DCDR COMO Dale Fajardo*, VCDR Terry Blanchard*
 - b. Division 03 DCDR Don Anderson, VCDR Doug McPherson
 - c. Division 04 DCDR Eddie Lam, VCDR Kristen Verveniotis
 - d. Division 05 DCDR Randy McCormick, VCDR Bob Schabert
 - e. Division 06 DCDR COMO Wally Smith, VCDR David Frisbey

- f. Division 07 DCDR Tony Zocchi*, VCDR Paul Custance
- g. Division 08 DCDR John Felton, VCDR Richard Stanton
- h. Division 10 DCDR Bill Boersma, VCDR Thomas Witt
- *i.* Division 11 DCDR Bryce Leinan*, VCDR Tom Henderson*
- j. Division 12 Will be holding their election on 280CT.
- 2) We should be well into our Flotilla elections at this point and we're hoping they are all successful and timely.
 - a. A couple of reports indicate that we are having some issues with Flotillas not having candidates to run for FC and VFC.
 - b. These positions are vital to the success of the Flotilla and to our organization as a whole.
- 3) Succession planning should start the day all elected leaders assume office

c. Fleet Week 2021 – Back in Business!

- 1) After a COVID hiatus last year, the San Francisco Bay Area resumed Fleet Week.
- 2) Overall, this was a very successful fleet week for the Auxiliary as most opportunities were afforded to us this year.
 - a. Michael Brown (shoreside activities)
 - i. We had no shoreside activities this year.
 - ii. Several factors including COVID, lack of communication with event planners, and a last-minute request for Aux participation factored into the lack of members
 - b. Gary Kaplan organized 14 members to assist on the CGC Aspen and George Cobb as Aux Safety Officers
 - c. Terry Blanchard (underway activities)
 - i. Amazing turnout over the four days with 43 members participating on the six OPFAC's
 - ii. Lots of great pics
 - d. Kevin Sellstrom (Communications)
 - i. Successful evolution at SSF with nine members working shifts over the four-day period.
 - ii. Sector extremely pleased with AUX Comms

d. OPCOM/National Board Meeting Scheduled for 23-24OCT2021

- 1) The National Operating Committee (all Aux Programs) Report-out will be on Saturday 230CT at 10:00pdt.
 - a. The event will be live streamed via YouTube and all are welcome.
 - b. This is a great opportunity to see and hear what is going on in our different program areas and what is coming down the pike.
- 2) The National Board Meeting will be held on Sunday 24OCT also at 10:00pdt and will include an awards ceremony. One of our own, Randy McCormick should be receiving the NACO Diversity Award at that time.

e. Division Changes of Watch Scheduling

- 1) Currently all of our Divisions have chosen to hold a Change of Watch event, with seven planned in person, two virtual, and one still being looked at.
- 2) Just a reminder that current D11 COVID capacity protocols require that the maximum number of people present for in-person events be limited to no more than 50ppl. And of course, the venue maximum size would also need to be taken into consideration.
 - a. All of this should be contained in your Mass Gathering Form that needs to be submitted to and approved by DIRAUX prior to the event.
- 3) Customarily, the SSF/SHB representative talks a bit about the Division, including how many volunteer hours, major points or milestones in the year. DCDR's, please provide this information to your DCAPT so the Rep has something to congratulate your team on.

4) Thank you DCDR's for holding these events. It is important and customary to hold formal events such as this to transition the mantle of leadership from one team to another and to recognize your staff for supporting the division for the last year. Especially during this time of COVID.

NEW BUSINESS:

a. Swearing in of District Captains for 2022

- 1) Alan Stanton, Bruce Martin, and Chuck Cobery, were sworn in as 2022 DCAPTs
 - a. Prologue DNACO PACAREA COMO Mary Kirkwood
 - b. Oath of Office DCO 11N COMO Dean McFarren
- 2) Frocking ceremony was conducted for our newest DCAPT, Chuck Cobery. COMO McFarren described the history of this ceremony.

b. Elected Officer Training

- 1) Two-part training as we did in 2020 for 2021
- 2) DCDR's, should send results of your Flotilla elections to our DSO-MT Ann Zocchi as soon as they are in.
- 3) First part virtual on Thursday December 9th at 18:30pst to cover items that are required or necessarily need to be done before end of year. This session should be approximately 3hrs in duration
- 4) Second part in person at Jan PCA Fair to cover more leadership or process related topics and should be approximately 8hrs in duration spanning both Saturday and Sunday.
- 5) Contingency plans are also being developed to hold the classes virtually in case we cannot hold our January PCA fair in person.

c. Overview of 2022 D11N Budget Proposal

- 1) The proposed budget keeps authorized spending flat for 2022
- 2) It appears that we may start the New Year with a reduced number of members due to members not paying dues for 2022.
 - a. This will result in less income to the District from dues
 - b. The District has the funds to make up the shortfall and ensure our programs continue to operate

For the Good of the Auxiliary:

- AUXSCOUT "Safety at Sea" 23OCT: COMO McFarren encouraged members to contact John-Michael Zimmerle if they wish to help. Some Details are:
 - Looking for 10-20 volunteers to assist active duty and reserve personnel with training of: De-watering techniques, Fire Hose Handling, Damage Control, Pipe Patching, Marine Fire Extinguisher Use, Visual Distress Signaling, and Recovery at Sea.
 - o Expecting approximately 225 children, adults, and Coasties
 - \circ Our Auxiliary Culinary Assistants will also be there serving dinner at 1800
- Daylight Savings Time is Ending: 7NOV is the move to Standard Time.
- Bryce Leinan noted Div 11 COW is on the Thursday before D-Train. He invited District Board & Staff to attend.
- Sue Fry noted Culinary Assistants provided food on the USCG Cutters George Cobb and Aspen during Fleet Week.
- Lew Derfuss noted they're having a going away party for Wil Sumner. COMO McFarren noted he's looking for DSO-MS as Wil leaves the District. Dean thanked Wil for his service.

COMO McFarren noted we'll continue YouTube for future meetings.

Adjourn: With no further comment or discussion DCO McFarren adjourned the meeting at 2116.

Next Meeting: November 17, 2021 at 1900 PST, Webinar

Respectfully Submitted by: Georgie Scheuerman, DSO-SR

ADDENDUM A: District Board, Staff Officers and Guests Present

DIRAUX: CDR Paige Keenan DIRAUX: BOSN2 Dustin Finkelson COMO Dean McFarren DCO COMO Mary Kirkwood IPDCO, DNACO PACAREA Chief of Staff Curtis Han **DCAPT Prevention: Alan Stanton DCAPT Response: Nancy Marion** DCAPT Support & Planning: Bruce Martin DCDR 1 – COMO Dale Fajardo; DCDR 3 – Russ Kaiser DCDR 4 – Michael Brown; DCDR 5 – Lew Derfuss DCDR 6 – Chuck Cobery; DCDR 7 – Tony Zocchi DCDR 8 – Phil Mammano; DCDR 10 – Dock Pierce DCDR 11 – Bryce Leinan; DCDR 12 -P-PCA – Jim Losi DSO's in attendance: DSO-AS - John-Michael Zimmerle DSO-AV – Larry Olson DSO-CA – Linda Haynes DSO-CM - Larry Stanton DSO-CS – DSO-DV -DSO-EM – Vinicio Mata DSO-FN – Fran Fisher DSO-HR – Jim Losi DSO-IS - Robert Aston DSO-LP -DSO-MA – Jerry Edelen DSO-MS - Wil Sumner DSO-MT – Ann Zocchi DSO-NS – Michael Hay DSO-OP - COMO Wally Smith DSO-PA – Jane Smith DSO-PB -DSO-PE – Sean Harvey DSO-PV – Mike Thompson DSO-SR – Georgie Scheuerman DSO-VE -CRC -ASC SF: Sue Fry ASC H: Bill Hale

Int Rel – Ricardo Moreno

Guests: COMO Mike Maddox, John Hardin, Don Anderson, and Present on YouTube were: Randy McCormick, Gail Giacomini, COMO Rod Collins, Robin Stewart, Kit Galvin, and 10 additional D11NR Members